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VISION STATEMENT

To be a customer oriented Company having wide and diversified customer base with a
team of professionals working together to add value to all the stakeholders and

contributing to society to help build a strong and progressive Pakistan.

MISSION STATEMENT

The mission of AN Textile Mills Limited is, recognition of its project as the most modem
units, and to produce fine quality of product with the understanding of customer
behavior. Build the Company on sound financial footings, increase earnings for

handsome distribution of dividend to its shareholders.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 42" Annual General Meeting of the members of AN Textile
Mills Limited (“the Company™) will be held on Friday, October 27, 2023 at 11:00 A M. at
its registered office situated at 35 K.M. Sheikhupura Road, Faisalabad to transact the
following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To contirm the minutes of last Annual General Meeting held on October 20, 2022,

2. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the year
ended June 30, 2023 together with the Chairperson’s review, Directors’ and Auditors’ reports
thereon.

3. To appoint the auditors of the Company for the next financial year and to fix their
remuneration. The retiring auditors M/s Riaz Ahmad and Company, Chartered Accountants,
being eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment.

4. To transact any other business that may be brought forward with the permission of the Chair.

By order of the Board

-
Dated: October 05, 2023 Tahir Shahzad
Faisalabad (Company Sccretary)

NOTES:

1. CLOSURE OF SHARE TRANSFER BOOKS

The share transfer books of the Company shall remain closed from October 20, 2023 to
October 27, 2023 (both days inclusive). Transfers received at the Share Registrar Office M/s
Corplink (Private) Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial, Model Town, Lahore by the
close of business on October 19, 2023 will be considered in time,

2. PARTICIPATION IN ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

A member entitled to attend and vote at the general meeting is entitled to appoint another
member as proxy. The proxies in order to be effective must be received by the Company not
less than 48 hours before the meeting.

CDC account holders will further have to follow the under mentioned guidelines:

A. FOR ATTENDING THE MEETING:

In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose
sccuritics are in group account, and their registration details arec uploaded as per the CDC

Regulations, shall authenticate his identity by sharing scan copy his original CNIC or original
passport at least 48 hours before the AGM.
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B. FOR APPOINTING PROXIES

In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose
securities are in group account, and their registration details are uploaded as per the CDC
Regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per the requirements notified by the Company.

The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers
shall be mentioned on the form.

Attested copies of CNIC or the passport, of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be
furnished with the proxy form.

In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with specimen
signature shall be submitted along with proxy form.
Form of proxy is annexed at the end of annual report as well as available at Company’s website

i.e., www.antextile.com.pk
3. CHANGE OF ADDRESS
Shareholders are requested to notily the change in their addresses il any, immediately.

4. COMPUTERISED NATIONAL IDENTITY CARD NUMBER / NATIONAL TAX
NUMBER

In compliance with regulatory directives issued from time to time, members who have not yet
provided their Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) Numbers and/or National Tax Number
(NTN), as the case may be, are requested to kindly provide copies of their valid CNIC and/or NTN
certificates at the earliest.

5. UNCLAIMED SHARES / DIVIDEND

Shareholders of the Company are hereby informed that as per the record, there are some
unclaimed/uncollected/ unpaid dividends and shares. Shareholders who could not collect their
dividends/shares arc advised to contact our Shares Registrars to collect enquire about their
unclaimed dividend or shares, if any. In compliance with scction 244 of the Companies Act, 2017,
after having completed the stipulated procedure, of three years or more from the date duc and
payable, shall be deposited to the credit of Federal Government in case of unclaimed dividend and
in case of share, shall be delivered to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.
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6. DEPOSIT OF PHYSICAL SHARES INTO CDC ACCOUNT

As per section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017, every existing Company shall be required to replace
its physical sharcs with book-entry form in a manner as may be specified and from the date notified
by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), within a period not exceeding
four years from the commencement of the Act. In this regard, SECP vide its Letter No.
CSD/ED/Misc./2016-639-640 dated March 26, 2021 has advised all the listed companies to pursue
their shareholders who still hold shares in physical form, requiring them to convert their shares in
book-entry form. Holding shares in book-entry form has numerous benefits including sccure
custody of shares, instantaneous transfer of ownership and no risk of damaged, lost, forged or
duplicate certificates. Accordingly, shareholders having physical shareholding are requested to
convert their shares in book-entry form by opening CDC sub-account with any of the brokers or
Investor Account direetly with CDC to place their physical shares into seript-less form.

7. TRANSMISSION OF ANNUAL REPORT ELECTRONICALLY

SECP through its notification SRO 787(1)/2014 dated September 8, 2014 has allowed the
circulation of audited financial statements along with the notice of Annual General Meeting
clectronically to the sharcholders of the Company through cmail. Therefore, sharcholders who
wish to receive the soft copy of Annual Report are requested to send their e-mail addresses.
The consent form for electronic transmission can be downloaded from the Company’s website.
The Company shall however, continue to provide hard copy of the audited financial statements
to its sharcholders, on request free of cost, within seven days of receipt of such request.

8. AVAILABILITY OF AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ON COMPANY’S
WEBSITE

In compliance with SECP notification No. 634(1)/2014 dated July 10, 2014, the audited financial
statements and reports of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2022 are being placed on the
Company’s website: www.antextile.com.pk for information and review of the sharcholders

9. VIDEO LINK FACILITY

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 the shareholders residing in a city and
holding at least 10% of the total paid up share capital may demand the Company to provide the
facility of video-link for participating in the AGM. The demand for video-link facility shall be
reccived by the Share Registrar at the address given here in above at Ieast seven days prior to the
date of the mecting on the Standard Form available on the Company’s websile:
www.antextile.com.pk
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CHAIRPERSON'S REVIEW
For the year ended June 30, 2023

The Board of Directors of AN Textile Mills Limited (“the Company™) is performing its duties in
accordance with law and in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders as required
under the Code of Corporate Governance, an annual evaluation of the Board of Directors of the
Company 1s carried out. The purpose of this evaluation is to ensure that the Board’s overall
performance and effectiveness is measured and benchmarked against expectations in the context
of objectives set for the Company.

For the financial year ended Junc 30, 2023, the Board’s overall performance and effectivencss
has been assessed as satisfactory. This is based on an evaluation of integral components,
including vision, mission and values; engagement in strategic planning; formulation of policies;
monitoring the organization’s business activities; monitor financial resource management;
effective fiscal oversight; equitable treatment of all employees and efficiency in carrying out the
Board’s business.

AN Textile Mills Limited complies with all the requirements set out in the Law with respect to
the composition, procedures and meetings of the Board of Directors and its committees.
Necessary Board agenda and related supporting documents were duly made available to the
board in sufficient time prior to the board and its committees’ mectings. The Board has exercised
all its powers in accordance with relevant laws and regulation and the non-executive and
independent directors are equally involved in important decisions of the Board.

Nag)/«\ hmst
Mrs, Nazma Amer
Chairperson
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE SHARE HOLDERS

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present their 42™ Annual Report along with audited
Financial Statements of the Company for the financial yvear ended June 30, 2023 along with
Auditors’ Report thereon and other required information prescribed under the Code of Corporate
Governance. The comparative financial results of the Company arc reproducced hereunder:

FINANCIAL RESULTS:
2023 2022
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH

CUSTOMERS 1,676,679 2,806,815
COST OF SALES (1,760,996) (2,615,112)
GROSS (LOSS) / PROFIT (84,317) 191,703
DISTRIBUTION COST (1,289) (3,149)
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (53,889) (54,514)
OTHER EXPENSES (228) (8,385)
OTHER INCOME 3,913 10,832
FINANCE COST (95,954) (30,518)
(LOSS) / PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (231,764) 105,969
TAXATION 36,029 (9,472)
(LOSS) / PROFIT AFTER TAXATION (195,735) 96,498
(LOSS) / EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC

AND DILUTED (RUPEES) (20.26) 9.99

REVIEW OF OPERATING RESULTS

In the fiscal year under review, sales proceeds were Rupees 1,676.679 million as compared to
previous year’s sales amounting to Rupees 2,806.815 million. The cost of sales was Rupees
1,760.996 million as compared to Rupees 2,615.112 million to previous year. The company
incurred loss after taxation of Rupees 195.735 million as compared to profit after taxation of
Rupees 96.498 million of previous year.
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During the year, the textile industry faced a difficult situation because of the global economic
slowdown, escalating political turbulence and economic uncertainties in the Country. The period
commenced with the floods in Pakistan, inflicting substantial damage and consequential
cconomic losses. The industry has also been confronted with the dual challenges of reduccd
cotton crop yiclds and rising prices of raw materials duc to sharp depreciation of Pak Rupee. The
Country’s forcign currency reserves have dipped to extremely low levels which is also affecting
our raw material and spare part imports. Due to these factors, the Company temporarily closed
its operations in July 2022 which were partially resumed in November 2022.

Moreover, the abrupt changes in the policies of the government have adversely affected the
results of the Company. Initially, the government formalized a subsidized electricity rate of
Rupees 19.99 per unit, covering the period from October 2022 to June 2023, offering relief for
the industry. Regrettably, this subsidy has been withdrawn, effective March 01, 2023, as a
stipulation of IMF program. Similarly increase in the General Sales Tax (GST) to 18% has
imposed an augmented fiscal burden upon the Company. Interest rate at the start of the year was
13.70%, which kept increasing throughout the vear and was 23.73% as of June 2023.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

The Company’s future prospects are cautiously optimistic as the new fiscal year has opened on a
positive note as Pakistan and IMF have struck the staff level agreement in bailout funds under a
stand by agreement (SBA) for nine months. In the future, updates regarding the IMF program
and financial inflows from both bilateral and multilateral sources will serve as a guiding roadmap
for fiscal and monetary measures in the medium term.

The management remains cognizant of these challenges as it continues its efforts to regain its
profitability by incrcasing its market cfforts to increasc in share of the market. We also remain
focused on the challenge of reducing our operating costs and using our efficiencics to maximize
our returns. Moreover, the Company will operate on its optimum capacity as it has support from
interest free loans obtained from the directors of the Company and facility of borrowings from
the banks to meet the liquidity requirements.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The loss per share for the year ended June 30, 2023 is Rupees 20.26 as compared to eamings per
share of Rupees 9.99 for the last year ended on June 30, 2022.

DIVIDEND

Since the company has incurred loss, therefore, the directors have not recommended any
dividend for the year.

OUTSTANDING STATUTORY PAYMENTS

All outstanding payments are nominal and of routine nature.
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

Pattern of shareholding as on June 30, 2023 is annexed. No trade in the shares of the company
was carried out during the year by its Directors, CEO, CFO and Company Secretary and their
spouses and minor children except for the sales / purchase of shares as mentioned on page

no. 68 .
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All transactions with related parties are carried out at arm’s length. The prices are determined in
accordance with comparable un-controlled price method. The Company has complied with best
practices on transfer pricing as contained in listing regulations of the Stock Exchanges of
Pakistan.

AUDITORS

The auditors M/s Riaz Ahmad & Company, Chartered Accountants retired and being eligible for
re-appointment, the Board of Directors has been suggested by the Audit Committee, the re-
appointment of M/s Riaz Ahmad & Company, Chartered Accountants, as auditors of your
company for the next financial year.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk assessment is an on-going process that highlights numerous uncertainties that poses
potential threats which may hinder the accomplishment of objectives of the Company. If these
risks are not being addressed in timely manner, may culminate in loss. Such risks and
uncertainties can arise both from external as well as internal factors within the Company.
Various risks are being faced by the company and summarized as follow along with mitigating
stratcgics.

STRATEGIC RISKS

The strategic risks such as critical availability of gas, electricity and alternate fuels for power
generation, and changes in domestic competitive scenario are being continuously monitored. The
Company’s expansion plans and growth targets are revisited with changing market situation.
Changes in macro-economic indicators, inconsistent / arbitrary changes in Government Policies
and significant increasc in natural gas, electricity and other fuel prices making cost of production
substantially higher are also being closely monitored & duly considered. Appropriate mitigation
strategies are formulated to reduce the impact of these risks to an acceptable level.

OPERATIONAL RISKS

Business continuity and disaster recovery plans are in place to ensure that continuity in
production and sales operations; in case of major failures and outages to ensure continuity,
sustainability and avoid any disruption to the business. Raw material sourcing, adequate
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segregation of duties, self- sufficiency in power generation at our plants, efficient supply chain
and logistic operations have enabled us to mitigate operational risk to an acceptable level.

FINANCIAL RISKS

One of the major financial risks is the fluctuation of the exchange rate and adverse movements
can directly affect our raw material costs and also lead to a rise in manufacturing costs. The
Company is aware of this situation and monitors such movements carefully to ensure minimum
shocks. Strict financial discipline, cash flow management and investment of available funds in
best possible avenues aid us in minimizing Financial Risks.

COMPLIANCE RISKS

Due to effective compliance with laws and regulations and transparent financial reporting
framework, compliance risk posed to the Company remains low. The Board promotes risk
management and compliance culture in the Company. Litigation risks involving significant cases
against the Company are handled through reputable Law firms with specialized expertise
wherever required.

HEALTH SAFETY AND ENVIORNMENT

Company believes in and are fully committed to improve Health, Safety and Environment
standards to achicve sustainable performance. Your Company was quick to implement the
Standards Operating Procedures (SOPs) to combat any climate change.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company admits its Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) towards the society and believes
in supporting the community.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board recognizes that well defined corporate governance processes are vital to enhancing
accountability. We are committed to ensuring high standards of corporate governance to
maintain stakeholder value. The Board has been diligent and has contributed effectively in
guiding the Company in all its strategic affairs, The Company keep close co-ordination with the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and the Pakistan Stock Exchange and complies
with the Code of Corporate Governance in the letter and spirit. The statement of compliance with
best practices of Code of Corporate Governance is annexed.

CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK:

In compliance to listing regulations of stock exchanges and as required under the Companies
Act, 2017, your Directors are pleased to state as under:
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1. The financial statements prepared by the Management of your Company present fairly its
state of affairs, the results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

2. Proper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained.

3. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of these
financial statements and accounting estimates, which are based on reasonable and prudent
judgment.

4. International Financial Reporting Standards and International Accounting Standards, as
applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of financial statements. The system
of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.

5. The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored.

6. There is no doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

7. There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as
detailed in the listing regulations.

8. Key operating financial data of last six years in summarized form is annexed.

9. The Company operates un-funded gratuity scheme for its employees as reflected in these
financial statements.

COMPOSITION OF BOARD AND ITS COMMITTIES
The total number of Directors are seven as per the following:

Male: Five
Female: Two

The composition of the Board is as follows:
i. Independent Directors

Mr. Abdul Rauf
Sycd Khalid Ali

ii. Non-executive Directors
Khawaja Amer Khurshid

ii. Executive Directors

Mr. Aizad Amer
Mr. Anns Amer
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iv Female / Non-executive Directors

Mrs. Nazma Amer
Ms. Yusra Amer

The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

Audit Committee

Mr. Abdul Rauf
Ms. Yusra Amer
Syed Khalid Ali

HR and Remuneration Committee

Syed Khalid Ali
Mr. Abdul Rauf
Mr. Anns Amer

Nomination Committee
Mr. Abdul Rauf

Ms. Yusra Amer
Syed Khalid Ali

Risk Management Committee

Mr. Anns Amer
Mr. Abdul Rauf
Syed Khalid Ali

Chairman
Member
Member

Chairman
Member
Member

Chairman
Member
Member

Chairman
Member
Mcember

NO. OF BOARD AND OTHER COMMITTEES® MEETINGS HELD:

Sr. | Name Board Of Audit HR & Nomination Risk
# Directors Committee Remuneration Committee | Management
Meeting Meeting Comumittee Committee
Meeting

1 | Mrs. Nazma 4/4 - - - -
Amer

2 | Mr. Aizad 4/4 - - - -
Amer

3 | Khawaja Amer 4/4
Khurshid

4 | Mr, Anns Amer 4/4 - 1/1 - 1/1

5 | Mr. Abdul Rauf 4/4 4/4 1/1 1/1 1/1

6 | Ms. Yusra 4/4 4/4 - 1/1 -
Amer

7 | Syed Khalid Ali 4/4 4/4 1/1 1/1 1/1
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

The Board places on record its appreciation for the cooperation, commitment and hard work extended to
the Company by the customers, supplicrs, bankers and all the employees of the Company.

On behalf of fhe Bgard

FAISALABAD. (Ai7ad Amer)
Dated: October 05, 2023 Chief Executive Officer
(Kha\)%{ Amer Khurshid)
Director

14




ANNUAL REPORT 2023

AN TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED C ' I

é«/{f/}(}uﬂﬂf; d/)/‘g/’lf

|

Pt Jr gt e S PG en S b bag s g AL G
b & o e K STt L § 337 242023 €230 Ju QWb 2-1e 2y
e ezl Lo GEL I B S g S peti

(ustf)2022  (Utusits)2023

2,806,815 1,676,679
(2,615,112) (1,760,996)
191,703 (84,317)
(3,149) (1,289)
(54,514) (53,889)
(8,385) (228)
10,832 3,913
(30,518) (95,954)
105,969 (231,764)
(9,472) 36,029
96,498 (195,735)
9.99

£edu

GuT

:f'fﬂd/@:/

Coe 1 (DA
e

el A1
.o_o,gv‘!):»

QuThs

SR

8(? / (L’)Lﬁﬁ)%é‘fg

A

B 1 ()l S

(20.26) (Ls)eeotino (Ol 1 ()

07 b1 (s

o 2,806.81504 75U 5L 1652 1,676.67904 704202314
N essp S &S S £ 1.6 - 50 41,760,996 Tl § 233).6-

15




ANNUAL REPORT 2023 AN TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED C ' I

|

LS L N TG 6195735 w1 £ I B Fir 615,112
_Ge06.498.0L S

AL Fort L5 2 nze ni$peoduleraf feluund Jv
Ll bl Qe P e L6 TR a1 B L e
Iifbappden/e§ 28l Lot S ST mo S ot
e P LS L L e bl S L U Sn 2
it 20228028 Fe aSIPc Gum b Fe s St be st
L& Vs prian 2022 23 b 6s 2 2 E b s S b SS RYT
Loy e SIS G L F Lk Uy S s
J£2023uze 20225 1A% 620 288 i S By e 19.99 bl
E e J8L RSty AL AN Sk L oo oS b
L5 LiF18% iRy ATy (A F3ite 20235
202307853 A2 13.70%35 0 S ITE Jlp s o L1
£ 23.73% %

PRI

AT, Bl 012 21 TO N Sl gy R L S LG
Sosbo ¥ CULE 18T o 5L (SBA) ox £1z b d LIl T
T CLsudn Moyt e AL i ESTE S o
S bt fid L BB alion

16




ANNUAL REPORT 2023 AN TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED C ' I

|

/VZ’(U;}IJML,&L&;'izLV’ZW%’J@.&LJ’[?&"Q%L%&'«’@'
WS BT e sl UETL L L S St/ Bl
4 /".q_Lné)§43f4§gLL/JWl/u;fw&'iéi]./u&)c.u&)f Blret
bl prrn L L J"uéj;{jué&f;:fzﬁfz_/rg eoloyf %L’gf&%@u
-g.d" bty d/:ﬂ.u’ }:-U:é’é’.ﬁc’.ﬁ/{jf:«&ﬂ/

2 Gg

£20220230 L b e n 20.26 87 ¢ 051L 20230230 JL- Gl plailts.o 3
o (429,908 Cy Lo

Flw

2o 30y 1L 20280230 L S AT LF ST

$

'\

AL S Lt Eie

::K?Km!n;-?

AL FEACFOCEO M ML G M\ 25 60,0 756 20230230
A3l s pu e i\ JEU | espSie SASUEEATIIS

-4@/)4--.9.?.---
RNy | Sl

B P st S5 Sa gt QL ecsll Mg s Ve s 5

17




ANNUAL REPORT 2023 AN TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED C ' I

e Sk 1Sl .ira‘c:g%_f Lol
751}

F STt HE ePrtssy e niste, NI g‘u'{ 2RV P\si o sy
A < u‘ﬁ: K134 g&{ SN P 3T S Wrn s TR S Sy VI
BB Qe ST

O

F e Qs oenm B 208 5L Lo Soi sSle LiihF b 6
IS i et B Fer s\ kit oL Sl
eGP Sl FR AL o0 b e Bt (B s
:%:‘i}gpaﬁ-qrén)lxl}ggur"éJ%‘:z:,wa,-ugén

e B

et Pl bt PRSP E L L L S Fs et 6 o
LWL Al s I F L S e 5 QI Sk s
3.5 b4 S I Ul G S e U st s B JS B Pt
ASES S o st g bl U2 S B
Sl P d L8 TP ELUSS L AP o\ Fodrubl
-{-6( Sz

LS

E B Ur L e i Lo S L Y5

|

18




ANNUAL REPORT 2023 AN TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED C ' I

S bt e et S Ul U oS el U 1
20 % Sl S 05U Mot S F U UB s I P S P s
e ﬁl}ugﬂ'&/f? /ﬁ4Q5J2JGuﬁLu;v‘d4f

2

S AL bt crtinaa§E e S g IR 2EDlsin Sl Al
Note e S I - Fer Far Wi it IS g sl G50
NS5 PPN A ‘«L@f’dt:f.‘a‘ﬂ/’f{@K/Lc}mi&z’.&ﬂu’tﬁf
bt L e (Bl S

Bl e

<V f?«:«WLJa‘pﬁ/){&é"—g(}:@f»}u@g/(.}.QLJW‘J;U.%%JM:@;!J 9
L8z $Iba bt s SBL o b WAL st Lot b
e bWUbya LUy IS S onen ST U S B

e rlsles”

Gl b oS oo L b S\ P £ UL G S
(SOPs) £y Lt (T £ e Y Qe e pr gt PS4
e S SE A LL S

dJ'IMf(;t‘b’—{:J{JK
e B Ut e cr S edie A (CORN s Glric y MEIFL o pond
ooy KT

|

19




ANNUAL REPORT 2023 AN TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

al

G L Lo Lotfoid e QAFIL ol e M b/ ey 1
St Fy L LG L P e KL L1335t o
35‘:4. Yenbe &b 2vt & S8t ._.éy*»lrL?Lmﬁ,?[ L Jnle i
ST §t fe S PR L é’fu’ bige el ST 3’5@! PR
e AN SIS IR Iy AL G e ST A IS o 6
g IEAL B 1Ol 1y 6

Frin Sl sonind STHE I L 2017 K174 PIEN )it <83

-yl

Juf&um.de@iLb»Lu'g/hw% Ao SHSAEISE
e It el oL

B A Ay WRON vl e ]

I /- T PRIV (1) of B LAt S u"}f/ Sk
~Ut UM Aot

S6sbert NIt Belmnd L SBS 81 S A
-‘466’:@&:%@4:«4@&6( :.uwl‘éf

e JEe &2 Wit 5P iy WK Do
—esrre el L Sied e b3
3 g S\ e HOL B2 K
eI g &

-1

-2
-3

-4

-5

~6
-7

|

20




ANNUAL REPORT 2023

AN TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED C ' I

|

e St e N e Sl iy £ L Lt Bt 29

S ALY,
BN L 2 S 30
&

»Igf/f
:‘gd'j,?/ﬂo.,f/“/:f
AT 1

33

AL

S g -2
WP

ML 3

V>

e

AL | e _4
Lbe

Sl -

it saur Al SR b

21




ANNUAL REPORT 2023

AN TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED C ' I

22

&"ff 1

(AR s
ORIy
5 Sy
B e HR
T
G S,

O
Fo

(AR e
A e
) J‘/Jl;,g’
Fosfil,

(L) oS
) i
D) J‘,Jl;,y

|




|

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 AN TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED m
:U""d//ﬁf ﬁ"fd S ra3091309]
dedr Ly 6‘{ &6 | sHR J‘QJT Thy rt S
& Flobr | S | M /4
- - - - 4/4 st |1
; ; - - 414 | gtz | 2
1 - 11 - aa | Lt | 3
- - - - 4/4 Wiprbds | 4
11 11 1711 | 4/4 414 | Stz | 5
- 11 - 4/4 44 | LS AAF | 6
11 11 1711 | 4/4 4/4 A% 7
)y

e NI W Pl b P estonlp Pl U sthosts s A A o1

£ a2V

*

)Q‘U“f

20235105 5.5

ks

29269

b 7 . o2
SHEISTh

23




ANNUAL REPORT 2023 AN TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED ‘| l

Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019

Name of Company: AN Textile Mills Limited
Year Ending: 30 June 2023

The Company has compiled with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:
1. The total number of Directors are seven as per the following:

a. Male: Five
b. Female: Two

2. The composition of the Board is as follows:
i. Independent Directors

Mr. Abdul Rauf
Sved Khalid Ali

ii. Non-executive Director
Khawaja Amer Khurshid
iii. Executive Directors

Mr. Aizad Amer
Mr. Anns Amer

1v. Female / Non-executive Directors

Mrs. Nazma Amer
Ms. Yusra Amer

* The fraction of independent directors is not rounded up as one because the fraction of 0.33 was
less than 0.50.

3. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed
companies, including this Company;

4. The Company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been
taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and
procedures;

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the
significant policies along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the company;
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6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have
been taken by the Board/ sharcholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and
these Regulations;

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairperson and, in her absence, by a
director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of
Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting
of the Board;

8. The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in
accordance with the Act and these Regulations;

9. Four directors, Mr. Aizad Amer, Mr. Anns Amer, Mr. Abdul Rauf and Syed Khalid Ali has
already acquired the certification under Directors’ Training Program (DTP) whereas another
director, Khawaja Amer Khurshid meets the exemption criteria of minimum of 14 years of
education and 15 years of experience on the Boards of listed companies, hence exempt from
DTP. Moreover, the Board will arrange DTP for its remaining two directors in the next financial
year. Furthermore, the Board will arrange DTP for its one Head of Department from next
financial year.

10. The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head
of Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and
complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations;

11, Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements
before approval of the Board;

12, The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee

Mr. Abdul Rauf (Chairman)
Ms. Yusra Amer (Member)
Syed Khalid Ali (Member)

b) HR and Remuneration Committee

Sved Khalid Ali (Chairman)
Mr. Abdul Rauf {Member)
Mr. Anns Amer {Member)

¢) Nomination Committee

Mr. Abdul Rauf (Chairman)
Ms. Yusra Amer (Member)
Syed Khalid Ali {Member)
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d) Risk Management Committee

Mr. Anns Amer {Chairman)
Mr. Abdul Rauf {(Member)
Syed Khalid Ali (Member)

_—
(%]

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised
to the committee for compliance;

14. The frequency of meetings of the committees were as follows-

Committee Frequency
Audit committee Quarterly
HR and remuneration committee Yearly
Nomination committee Yearly
Risk Management commilice Yearly

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function by appointing Head of Internal Audit
who is considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and is conversant with the
policies and procedures of the company;

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners
are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of
ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the
partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and
non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal
audit, company secretary or director of the company;

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide
other services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed TFAC guidelines in this
regard;

18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations
have been complied with; and

19.  All requirements other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 have been complied except
for the non-compliances as given in Note 9 of the statement of compliance in which related
compliance will be made in next financial year.

Na%‘/‘q At
NAZMA AMER AIZAD AMER
Chairperson Chief Executive Officer

26




ANNUAL REPORT 2023 AN TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED C ' I

|

KEY OPERATING & FINANCIAL DATA
FOR LAST SIX YEARS

PARTICULARS 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
.................................... (Rupees in Thousand).......cccoeieiiiinniinennn.
FINANCIAL POSITION
Paid up capital 96,600 96,600 96,600 96,600 96,600 96,600
Share premium 17,250 17,250 17,250 17,250 17,250 17,250
Fixed asscts at cost/ revalued amount 2,093,101 1,639,197 1,758,151 1,554,811 1,451,947 1,431 460
Accumulated depreciagon 826,745 780,085 731,980 692,754 653,241 613,088
Current assets 683,125 871,610 929,132 688,988 690,441 418,114
Current liabiliies 876,706 843,447 956,477 840,786 773,391 556,464
INCOME
Revenue 1,676,679 2,800,815 2,096,653 1,315,177 1,885,310 1,598,473
Other income 3913 10,832 19,889 22,361 18,330 16,250
Pre rax (loss) / profic (231,764 105,969 239,024 (72,443) 61,527 3417
Taxation 36,029 (9.472) (119,529) (7,884) 42,507) (11,020)

STATISTICS AND RATIOS

Pre tax profit / (loss) to sales %o -13.82 3.78 114 (5.51) 3.26 0.21
Prc tax profic / (loss) wo capital %o (239.92) 109.70 24744 7499 63.69 3.54
Currenr ratio 1:0.78 1:1.03 1:0.97 1:0.82 1:0.89 1:0.75
Paid up value per share (Rs) 10 10 10 10 10.00 10.00
Tarnings / (loss) after tax per share (Rs) (20.26) 9.99 12.37 (8.32) 1.97 (0.79)
Cash dividend %o - - 7.00 - 4.00 -

Break up value per share (Rs.) 95.68 96,74 87.05 74.81 80.08 77.30
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT
To the members of AN Textile Mills Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance Contained in Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code
of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of
Directors of AN Textile Mills Limited (the Company) for the year ended 30 June 2023 in
accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of
the Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects
the status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if
it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations.
A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various
documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an
understanding of the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit
and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the
Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an
opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance
procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their
review and approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have ensured
compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party
transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all
material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the
Company for the year ended 30 June 2023.

RIAZ AHMAD & COMPANY

Chartered Ac l/m_tajr‘ts

Falsalabb
Date: October 05, 2023

UDIN: CR202310158bTY73WIxc
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the members of AN Textile Mills Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of AN Textile Mills Limited (the
Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2023, and the
statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and
explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows
together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair
view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 30 June 2023 and of the loss, other
comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Following are the key audit matters:

Inventories as at 30 June 2023
amounting to Rupees 411.041
million, break up of which is as
follows:

- Stores, spare parts and loose
tools of Rupees 97.562 million

- Stock in trade of Rupees 313.479
million

Inventories are measured at the
lower of cost and net realizable
value.

We identified existence and valuation
of inventories as a key audit matter
due to its size, representing 21.02%
of the total assets of the Company as
at 30 June 2023, and the judgment
involved in valuation.

For further information on

inventories, refer to the following:

- Summary of significant
accounting policies, Inventories
(Note 2.7 to the finandal
statements).

- Stores, spare parts and loose
tools (Note 16) and Stock in trade
(Note 17) to the financial
statements.

Sr. | Key audit matters How the matters were addressed in
No. our audit
1. | Inventory existence and
valuation _
Our procedures over existence and

valuation of inventories included, but were
not limited to:

[ ]

To test the quantity of inventories at
all locations, we assessed the
corresponding inventory observation
instructions and participated in
inventory counts on site. Based on
samples, we performed test counts
and compared the quantities counted
by us with the results of the counts
of the management.

For a sample of inventory items, re-
performed the weighted average
cost calculation and compared the
weighted average cost appearing on
valuation sheets.

On a sample basis, we tested the net
realizable value of inventory items to
recent selling prices and re-
performed the calculation of the
inventory write down, if any.

In the context of our testing of the
calculation, we analyzed individual
cost components and traced them
back to the corresponding underlying
documents.

We also made inquiries from
management, including those
outside of the finance function, and
considered the results of our testing
above to determine whether any
specific write downs were required.

We also assessed the adequacy of
the disclosures made in respect of
the accounting policies and related
notes to the financial statements.
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Sr. | Key audit matters How the matters were addressed in
No. our audit
2. | Revenue recognition

The Company recognized net
revenue of Rupees 1,676.679 million
for the year ended 30 June 2023.

We identified recognition of revenue
as a key audit matter because
revenue is one of the key
performance indicators of the
Company and gives rise fo an
inherent risk that revenue could be
subject to misstatement to meet
expectations or targets.

For further information, refer to the
following:

- Summary of significant
accounting  policies, Revenue
from contracts with customers
(Note 2.18 to the financial
statements).

- Revenue from contracts with
customers (Note 23 to the
financial statements).

Our procedures included, but were not
limited to:

We obtained an understanding of the
process relating to recognition of
revenue and testing the design,
implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls
over recording of revenue.

We compared a sample of revenue
transactions recorded during the year
with sales orders, sales invoices,
delivery documents and other relevant
underlying documents.

We compared a sample of revenue
transactions recorded around the year-
end with the sales orders, sales
invoices, delivery documents and other
relevant underlying documentation to
assess if the related revenue was
recorded in the appropriate accounting
period.

We assessed whether the accounting
policies for revenue recognition complies
with the requirements of IFRS 15
‘Revenue from Contracts with
Customers’.

We also considered the appropriateness
of disclosures in the financial
statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as
applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

I
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. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows
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together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

a) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year
were for the purpose of the Company’s business; and

d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII
of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is
Mubashar Mehmood.

RIAZ AHMAD & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

/(m

i

Faisalab
Date: October 05, 2023
UDIN: AR202310158SuWpmkwT0
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

NOTE 2023 2022
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMER 23 1,676,679 2,806,815
COST OF SALES 24 (1,760,996) (2,615,112)
GROSS (LOSS) / PROFIT (84,317) 191,703
DISTRIBUTION COST 25 (1,289) (3,149)
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 26 (53,889) (54,514)
OTHER EXPENSES 27 (228) (8,385)
OTHER INCOME 28 3,913 10,832
FINANCE COST 29 (95,954) (30,518)
(LOSS) / PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (231,764) 105,969
TAXATION 30 36,029 (9,472)
(LOSS) / PROFIT AFTER TAXATION (195,735) 96,498
(LOSS) / EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC

AND DILUTED (RUPEES) 31 (20.26) 9.99

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

N ,‘
KHAWA r' "

AIZAD AMER AMER KHURSHID Muhamad Saqib Ehsan
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

(LOSS) / PROFIT AFTER TAXATION
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Remeasurement (loss) / gain arising on staff retirement gratuity
Related deferred income tax liability

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment
Related deferred income tax liability

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Other comprehensive income for the year - net of deferred income tax

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) / INCOME FOR THE YEAR

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

AIZAD AMER KHAWIAA«‘AMER KHURSHID

Chief Executive Officer Director

2023

2022

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

(195,735) 96,498
(280) 5,365
81 (1,556)
(199) 3,809
233,938 -
(48,181) -
185,757 -
185,558 3,809
185,558 3,809
(10,177) 100,307
b’ & /

Muhamgnad Saqib Ehsan
Chief Financial Officer

|
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

NOTE 2023 2022
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from / (used in) operations 32 156,394 (14,452)
Finance cost paid (84,733) (30,934)
Mark-up paid against lease liability (299) (119)
Income tax paid (36,327) (43,951)
Staff retirement gratuity paid (17,284) (11,135)
Net decrease / (increase) in long term deposits and prepayments 73 (115)
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating
activities 17,824 (100,706)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment (25,243) (126,175)
Initial direct cost incurred on right-of-use asset - (85)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 6,654 73,000
Short term investment redeemed - 5,500
Profit on investment received - 243
Net cash used in investing activities (18,589) (47,517)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Short term borrowings - net 4,789 113,819
Repayment of lease liability (240) (1,460)
Dividend paid - (6,531)
Net cash from financing activities 4,549 105,828
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 3,784 (42,395)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 25,875 68,270
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
END OF THE YEAR (NOTE 22) 29,659 25,875

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

/ b' & /
AIZAD AMER KHAWAAMER KHURSHID Muhamad Saqib Ehsan
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer

|

39




ANNUAL REPORT 2023 AN TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED C ' l

1.1

1.2

21

a)

b)

c)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

AN Textile Mills Limited (the Company) is a public limited company incorporated in Pakistan under the
Companies Act, 1913 (Now Companies Act, 2017) and listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. Its registered
office and mills premises are situated at 35-Kilometers Sheikhupura Road, Faisalabad. The principal activity of
the Caompany is manufacturing, sale and trading of yarn and cloth. A liaison office is situated at 404-405, 4th
Floar, Business Centre, Mumtaz Hassan Road, Karachi.

After the inception of financial year 2022-23, the Company temporarily closed its operations due to unforeseen
downturn in the market and unavailability of good quality of cotton in local market because of heavy rain and
flood. However the operations of the mills were resumed partially in November 2022. The Company will operate
on its optimum capacity as it has support from interest free loans obtained from the directors of the Company
and facility of borrowings from the banks to meet the liquidity requirements. Furthermore, the Company has
plans to impart raw material from fareign countries with the help of which production will increase in future.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting polides applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated:

Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Adt, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRSs, the provisions
of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except as otherwise stated
in the respective accounting policies.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting and reporting standards
requires the use of certain critical acoounting estimates. It also requires the management to exercise its
judgment in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually
evaluated and are based an historical experience and other factors, induding expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The areas where various assumptions and estimates are
significant to the Company's financial statements or where judgments were exercised in application of accounting
policies are as follows:

Useful lives, patterns of economic benefits and impairments

The estimates for revalued amounts of different classes of property, plant and equipment, are based on
valuation performed by external professional valuer and recommendation of technical teams of the Company.
The said recommendations also include estimates with respect to residual values and depredable lives. Further,
the Company reviews the value of the assets for possible impairment on an annual basis. Any change in the
estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of praperty, plant and
equipment with a correspanding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment.

|
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Inventories

Inventary write-down is made based on the current market conditions, historical experience and selling goods of
similar nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in market conditions. A review is made on
each reporting date on inventories for excess inventories, obsolescence and dedines in net realizable value and
an allowance is recorded against the inventory balances for any such declines.

Income tax

In making the estimates for income tax currently payable by the Company, the management takes into account
the current income tax law and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.

Allowance for expected credit losses

The allowance for expected credit losses assessment requires a degree of estimation and judgement. It is based
an the lifetime expected credit loss, based on the Company's experience of actual credit loss in past years.

Provisions

As the actual outflows can differ from estimates made for provisions due to changes in laws, regulations, public
expectations, technology, prices and conditions, and can take place many years in the future, the carrying
amounts of provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to take account of such changes. Any
adjustments to the amount of previously recognized pravision is recognized in the statement of profit or loss
unless the provision was originally recognized as part of cost of an asset.

Contingendes

The Company reviews the status of all pending litigations and claims against the Company. Based on the
judgment and the advice of the legal advisors for the estimated financial outcome, appropriate disclosure or
provision is made. The actual outcome of these litigations and claims can have an effedt on the carrying amounts
of the liabilities recognized at the reporting date.

Revenue from contracts with customers involving sale of goods

When recognizing revenue in relation to the sale of goods to customers, the key performance obligation of the
Company is considered to be the paint of delivery of the goods to the customer, as this is deemed to be the time
that the customer obtains control of the promised goods and therefore the benefits of unimpeded access.

Staff retirement gratuity

Certain actuarial assumptions have been adopted as disclosed in Note 9.5 to the financial statements for
determination of present value of staff retirement gratuity. Any change in these assumptions in future years
might affect the current and remeasurement gains and losses in those years.

Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in current year and
are relevant to the Company

Following amendments to published approved accounting standards are mandatory faor the Company’s
accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2022:

« Amendments to IAS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’ - Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract amends IAS 1 'Presentation of Finandal Statements’

= Amendments to IAS 16 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ - Proceeds before Intended Use’

» Annual improvements to IFRS standards 2018-2020 which amended IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ and IFRS
16 ‘Leases’

The above-mentioned amendments to approved accounting standards did not have any impact on the amounts
recognized in prior period and are not expedted to significanty affect the current or future periods.

Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in current year but
not relevant to the Company

There are amendments to published standards that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning an or after
01 July 2022 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant impact an the Company‘s
financial statements and are therefore not detailed in these financial statements.
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Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet effective but relevant
to the Company

Following amendments to existing standards have been published and are mandatory for the Company’s
accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2023 or later periods:

Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Finandial
Statements”) effective for the annual period beginning on or after 01 January 2023. These amendments in the
standards have been added to further clarify when a liability is classified as current. The standard also amends
the aspect of dlassification of liability as non-current by requiring the assessment of the entity’s right at the end
of the reporting period to defer the settlement of liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
An entity shall apply these amendments retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes
in Accounting Estimates and Errors’.

Disclosure of Accounting Palicies (Amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ and IFRS Practice
Statement 2 ‘Making Materiality Judgement’) effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2023.
These amendments are intended to help preparers in deciding which accounting policies to disclose in their
finandal statements. Earlier, IAS 1 stated that an entity shall disdose its ‘significant accounting policies” in their
finandal statements. These amendments shall assist the entities to disclose their *‘material accounting policies”in
their financial statements.

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments to IAS 12 ‘Income
Taxes") effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2023. These amendments clarify how
companies account far deferred tax on transactions such as leases and decommissianing obligations.

Change in definition of Accounting Estimate (Amendments to IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors) effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2023. This change replaced
the definition of Accounting Estimate with a new definition, intended to help entities to distinguish between
accounting palicies and accounting estimates.

0On 31 October 2022, the IASB issued 'Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (Amendments to IAS 1)' to clarify
how conditions with which an entity must comply within twelve months after the reporting period affect the
classification of a liability. The amendments are effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 01 January
2024,

0On 22 September 2022, the IASB issued 'Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (Amendments to IFRS 16)" with
amendments that clarify how a seller-lessee subsequently measures sale and leaseback transactions that satisfy
the requirements in IFRS 15 to be accounted for as a sale. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 01 January 2024.

On 25 May 2023, the IASB issued 'Suppliers Finance Arrangements (Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7)' to add
disclosure requirements, and ‘signposts’ within existing disdosure requirements, that ask entities to provide
qualitative and quantitative information about supplier finance arrangement. The amendments are effective for
reporting period beginning on or after 01 January 2024.

The above amendments and improvements are likely to have no significant impact on the financial statements.

Standards and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet
effective and not considered relevant to the Company

There are other standards and amendments to published approved standards that are mandatory for accounting
periods beginning on or after 01 July 2023 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant
impact on the Company’s financial statements and are therefore not detailed in these financial statements.

Property, plant, equipment and depreciation

All operating fixed assets except freehold land are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any identified
impairment loss, except those subject to revaluation which are stated at revalued amount less accumulated
depreciation and any identified impairment loss. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less any recognized
impairment loss. Cost includes expenditure directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and those incurred
during installation and construction period. Transfers are made to relevant asset category as and when asset
becomes available for intended use. Freehold land is stated at revalued amount less any identified impairment
loss. Cost of operating fixed assets consists of historical cost, borrowing cost pertaining to the construction /
erection period of qualifying assets and other directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to working
condition.
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Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment are recognized, net of
deferred income tax, in other comprehensive income and accumulated in revaluation surplus in shareholders’
equity. To the extent that increase reverses a decrease previously recognized in the statement of profit or loss,
the increase is first recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases of the
same asset are first recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining surplus
attributable to the asset; all other decreases are charged to the statement of profit or loss. Each year, the
difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to the statement of
profit or loss and depreciation based on the asset's original cost, net of deferred income tax, is reclassified from
surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment to unappropriated profit / (accumulated loss).

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future econamic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are charged to the statement
of profit or loss during the period in which these are incurred.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ
materially from its carrying amount.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is charged to the statement of profit or loss applying the
reducing balance method so as to write off the cost / depreciable amount of the assets over their estimated
useful lives at the rates given in Note 13. The Company charges the depreciation on additions from the month
when the asset is available for use and on deletions up to the month preceding the month when the asset is de-
recognized. The residual values and useful lives are reviewed by the management, at each financial year-end and
adjusted if impact on depreciation is significant.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset is included in the
statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is de-recognized while the related residual revaluation surplus on
property, plant and equipment after taking in to account incremental depreciation is transferred directly to
unappropriated profit / (accumulated loss).

Leases
Right-of-use assets

A right-of-use asset is recognized at the commencement date of a lease. The right-of-use asset is measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses (if any). The cost comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability, adjusted for, as applicable, any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date net of any lease incentives received, any initial direct costs incurred, and, except where
included in the cost of inventories, an estimate of costs expected to be incurred for dismantling and removing
the underlying asset, and restoring the site or asset.

Right-of-use assets are depredated on a straight-line basis over the unexpired period of the lease or the
estimated useful life of the asset, whichever is shorter. Where the Company expects to obtain ownership of the
leased asset at the end of the lease term, the depreciation is charged over its estimated useful life. Right-of use
assets are subject to impairment or adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities.

The Company has elected not to recognize a right-of-use asset and corresponding lease liability for short-term
leases with terms of 12 months ar less and leases of low-value assets. Lease payments on these assets are
charged to income as incurred.

Lease liabilities

A lease liability is recognized at the commencement date of a lease. The lease liability is initially recognized at
the present value of the lease payments ta be made over the term of the lease, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate.
Lease payments comprise of fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees, exercise price of a
purchase option when the exercise of the option is reasonably certain to occur, and any anticipated termination
penalties. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are expensed in the peried in
which these are incurred.
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2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

Lease liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The carrying amounts are re-
measured if there is a change in the following: future lease payments arising from a change in an index or a rate
used; residual guarantee; lease term; certainty of a purchase option and termination penalties. When a lease
liability is re-measured, an adjustment is made to the corresponding right-of-use asset, or to statement of profit
or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is fully written down.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to depredation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date or whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognized for the amount for which asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Reversals of the
impairment losses are restricted to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, if impairment losses had not been recognized. An
impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as share capital. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are recognized as expense in the period in which these are incurred except to the extent of
borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset
(an asset that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale). Such
borrowing costs are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset.

Inventories

Inventories, except for stock in transit and waste stock, are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost
is determined as follows:

Stores, spare parts and loose tools

Usable stores, spare parts and loase tools are valued principally at moving average cost, while items considered
obsolete are carried at nil value. In transit stores, spare parts and logse taols are valued at invoice amount plus
other charges incidental thereon.

Stock in trade
Cost of raw materials, work-in-process and finished goods is determined as follows:

(i) For raw materials: Weighted average cost.

Average manufacturing cost including a portion
of production overheads

(i) For work-in-process and finished goods:

Materials in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon. Waste stock is
valued at net realizable value.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated cost of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make a sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, cash at banks on current accounts and other short term highly
liquid instruments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant
risk of changes in values.

Staff retirement benefit

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for its permanent employees, who have completed the
minimum qualifying period of service as defined under the scheme. The liabilities relating to defined benefit plan
are determined through actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The method involves making
assumptions about discount rates, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the long term nature of the
benefit, such estimates are subject to certain uncertainties. The latest actuarial valuation was conducted at the
reporting date by a qualified professional firm of actuaries.

Remeasurements changes which comprise actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in other
comprehensive income.
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i)

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and
itis probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligations
and a reliable estimate of the outflow can be made.

Taxation
Current

Provision for current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the
prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or tax
rates expected to apply to the profit for the year, if enacted. The charge for current tax also includes
adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years arising from assessments
framed during the year for such years.

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method in respect of all temporary differences arising from
differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax
credits can be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse based
on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or
credited in the statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Dividend and other appropriations

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognized as a liability in the Company's financial
statements in the period in which it is dedared and other appropriations are recognized in the periad in which
these are approved by the Board of Directors.

Financial instruments
Classification and measurement of financial instruments
a) Classification

The Company dassifies its financial assets at amortized cost. The classification depends on the Company’s
business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

b) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest. Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Company classifies its debt instruments at amortized
cost. Finandal assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is induded in other income using the effective interest rate method. Financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense is recognized in the statement
of profit or lass. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition is recognized directly in profit or loss and presented
in other income / (other expenses).

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on financial assets measured at amortized
cast.

The Company measures allowance for ECLs at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs except for the bank balances
and debt securities for which credit risk (the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the financial
instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition. For this case ECLs are measured at 12-
months basis.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis,
based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking
information.
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The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than past
due for a reasonable period of time. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. 12-manths ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default
events that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of
the instrument is less than 12 manths).

Loss allowance for financial assets measured at amortized cost is deducted from the grass carrying amount of
the assets.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations
af recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Company individually makes an
assessment with respect to the timing and amount of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable
expectation of recovery. The Company expects no significant recavery from the amount written off. However,
financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enfarcement activities in order to comply with the
Company's procedures far recovery of amounts due.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets are credit-impaired. A financial asset is
‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact an the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have accurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant finandial difficulty of the debtor;
- a breach of contract such as a default;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company an terms that the Company would not consider
atherwise; or

- it is prabable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization.
i) De-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

(a) Financial assets

The Company de-recognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
ar it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred, or it neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does nat retain control aver the transferred asset. Any
interest in such de-recognized financial assets that is created or retained by the Company is recognized as a
separate asset or liability.

(b) Financial liabilities

The Company de-recognizes a finandial liability (or a part of financial liability) from its statement of finandal
position when the obligation spedfied in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expired.

iv) Offsetting of financial intruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and the net amount is reported in the financial statements only
when there is a legally enforceable right to set off and the Company intends either to settle on a net basis or to
realize the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.14 Borrowings

Financing and borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction costs. These are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method while the difference between the cost (reduced
for periodic payments) and redemption value is recognized in the statement of profit or loss over the period of
barrowings using the effective interest method.

2.15 Trade and other receivables

Trade debts are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at amartized cost using the effective
interest method, less any allowance for expected credit losses.

QOther receivables are recognized at amortized cost, less any allowance for expected credit losses.
2.16 Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are initially recognized at fair value plus directly attributable
costs, if any. These are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
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iii)

iv)

2.19

2.20

2.21

Functional and presentation currency along with foreign currency transactions and translation

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates (the functional currency). The finandal statements are
presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. All monetary assets and
liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date.
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabiliies denominated in fareign currendes are
charged or credited to statement of profit or loss.

Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenue recognition
Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when the customer obtains control of the
goods, which is generally at the time of delivery.

Interest

Interest income is recognized as interest accrues using the effective interest method. This is a method of
calaulating the amortized cost of a finandal asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant period
using the effective interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the finandal asset.

Rental income

Revenue from rental income is recognized when rent is accrued.

Other revenue

Other revenue is recognized when it is received or when the right to receive payment is established.
Contract assets

The Company recognizes a contract asset for the earned consideration that is conditional if the Company
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due. Contract assets are treated as finandial assets for impairment purposes.

Right of return assets

Right of return assets represents the right to recover inventory sold to customers and is based on an estimate of
customers who may exerdse their right to return the goods and claim a refund. Such rights are measured at the
value at which the inventory was previously carried prior to sale, less expected recovery costs and any
impairment.

Contract liabilities

Contract liability is the obligation of the Company to transfer goods to a customer for which the Company has
received consideration from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers
goods, a contract liability is recognized when the payment is received. Contract liabilities are recognized as
revenue when the Company accomplishes its performance obligations under the contract.

Earnings / (loss) per share

The Company presents Earnings Per Share (EPS) or Loss Per Share (LPS) data for its ordinary shares. EPS / LPS
is caleulated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the vear.

Contingent assets

Contingent assets are disdosed when the Company has a possible asset that arises from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the acaurrence or non-occurrence of ane or mare uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent assets are nat recognized until their realization becomes
certain.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liability is disdosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past events whose
existence will only be confirmed by the accurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent liabilities are nat recognized, anly disclosed, unless the
possibility of a future outflow of resources is considered remote. In the event that the outflow of resources
associated with a contingent liability is assessed as probable, and if the size of the outflow can be reliably
estimated, a provision is recognized in the finandal statements.

al
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3.

6.1

al

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL

2023 2022 2023 2022
(NUMBER OF SHARES) (RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
9 060 000 9 060 000  QOrdinary shares of Rupees 10 each fully

paid in cash 90,600 90,600

600 000 600 000  Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each

issued as fully paid bonus shares 6,000 6,000
9 660 000 9 660 000 96,600 96,600

DIRECTORS' LOANS

These represent unsecured interest free loans obtained from the directors of the Company to meet the liquidity
requirements of the Company. These loans are repayable at the discretion of the Company. Out of these loans,
an amount of Rupees 300 million (2022: Rupees 300 million) is subordinated to the bank borrowings.

PREMIUM ON ISSUE OF SHARES

This reserve can be utilized by the Company anly for the purpose specified in section 81 of the Companies Act,
2017.

2023 2022
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT - NET OF DEFERRED INCOME TAX
Balance as at 01 July 298,499 307,540
Add: Increase in surplus on revaluation - net of deferred income tax 185,757 -
484,256 307,540
Less: Transferred to unappropriated profit in respect of incremental
depreciation charged during the year - net of deferred income tax 8,589 9,041
Balance as at 30 June 475,667 298,499

Freehold land, buildings thereon, plant and machinery, eledtric installations / appliances, generators and
laboratory equipment of the Company were revalued by an independent valuer, Messrs Zafar Igbal and
Company on 27 June 2023 on the basis of present prevailing market prices. Previously these assets were
revalued by independent valuers an 30 June 2020, 29 June 2019, 30 June 2016, 28 June 2013, 10 April 2007,
01 July 2003 and 30 September 2001.

DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITY
This comprises the following:

Taxable temporary differences

Accelerated tax depreciation 235,061 189,369
Right-of-use asset 690 863
235.751 190.232
Deductible temporary differences
Staff retirement gratuity (11,807) (10,588)
Lease liability (459) (529)
Allowance for expected credit losses (160) (120)
Unused tax losses (110,611) (57,394)
(123,037) (68,631)
112,714 121,601

|
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2023 2022
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
7.1 Movement in deferred income tax liability balance is as follows:

8.1

al

At beginning of the year 121,601 145,659
Add [ (less):
- accelerated tax depreciation 45,692 2,237
- right-of-use asset (173) 863
- staff retirement gratuity (1,219) (542)
- lease liahility 70 (529)
- allowance for expected credit losses (40) (120)
- unused tax losses (53,217) (25,967)
Net mavement of temporary differences (Note 7.1.1) (8,887) (24,058)
112,714 121,601
7.1.1 Charged to the statement of profit or loss:
Net movement of temporary differences (Note 7.1) (8,887) (24,058)
- on remeasurement of staff retirement gratuity 81 (1,556)
- an surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment (48,181) -
(56,987) (25,614)
LEASE LIABILITY
Total lease liability 1,583 1,823
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities 365 295
1,218 1,528
Recondliation of lease liability
Balance as an 01 July 1,823 -
Add:
Addition during the year - 3,283
Interest accrued on lease liability (Note 29) 200 119
2,122 3,402
Less: Payments made during the year 539 1,579
Balance as on 30 June 1,583 1,823

8.2

8.3

This represents vehicle acquired under finance lease agreement from Bank Al-Habib Limited and is secured

against title of leased asset and demand promissory note. The implicit interest rate used to arrive at the present

value of minimum lease payments is 6 months KIBOR + 1.50% per annum (2022: 6 months KIBOR + 1.50%

per annum). Taxes, repairs and insurance costs are to be borne by the Company.

Maturity analysis of lease liability is as follows:

Upto 06 months 378 290
06 to 12 months 328 290
01 to 02 years 656 580
More than 02 years 984 1,451

2,346 2,611
Less: Future finance cost 763 788
Present value of lease liability 1,583 1,823
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9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

al

STAFF RETIREMENT GRATUITY

Latest actuarial valuation of the staff retirement gratuity was conducted as on 30 June 2023. Results of actuarial
valuation are as under:

The amount included in the statement of financial position is as follows:

2023 2022
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Present value of defined benefit obligation 40,714 36,508
Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation
Balance as at 01 July 36,508 34,640
Add:
Provision for the year (Note 9.3) 21,210 18,368
Remeasurements chargeable to other comprehensive income (Note 9.4) 280 (5,365)
57,998 47,643
Less: Retirement benefit paid (17,284) (11,135)
Balance as at 30 June 40,714 36,508
Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation as
at 30 June is given below:
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at 01 July 36,508 34,640
Current service cost 15,753 13,410
Past service cost 1,765 2,051
Interest cost 3,692 2,907
Retirement benefit paid (17,284) (11,135)
Remeasurements chargeable to other comprehensive income (Note 9.4) 280 (5,365)
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at 30 June 40,714 36,508
Provision for the year
Current service cost 15,753 13,410
Past service cost 1,765 2,051
Interest cost 3,692 2,907
21,210 18,368
Remeasurements chargeable to other comprehensive income
Actuarial loss from changes in financial assumptions 56 58
Experience adjustments 224 (5,423)
280 (5,365)
2023 2022
Principal actuarial assumptions used
Discount rate for interest cost in the statement of profit or loss charge (per anni 13,259 10.00%
Discount rate for year end abligation (per annum) 16.25% 13.25%
Expected rate of increase in salaries (per annum) 15.25% 12.25%
Average duration of the benefit 5 5
Mortality rates SLIC 2001-05  SLIC 2001-05
set back 1 year setbad< 1 year
Withdrawal rate Age based Age based
Retirement assumption Age 60 Age 60

The estimated expenses to be charged to the statement of profit or loss for the year ending on 30 June 2024 is
Rupees 20.037 million.

|
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9.7

9.8

9.9
a)

b)

i)

10.

10.1

10.2

Sensitivity analysis for actuarial assumptions:

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions
constant, would have resulted in present value of defined benefit obligation as stated below:

2023 2022
Discount rate 1.00% 1.00%
Increase in assumption (Rupees in thousand) (1,967) (1,844)
Decrease in assumption (Rupees in thousand) 2,211 2,082
Future salary increase 1.00% 1.00%
Increase in assumption (Rupees in thousand) 2,211 2,082
Decrease in assumption (Rupees in thousand) (1,999) (1,876)

The sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is
unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit
plan to significant actuarial assumptions, the same method (present value of the defined benefit plan calculated with the projected
unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to previous year, except
for certain changes as given in Note 9.5.

Expected benefit payments for future years:

al

|

Within 1-2 2-3 3-4 More than
1 year years years years 4 years
RUPEES IN THOUSAND
2023 12,284 8,425 9,174 8,613 965,243
2022 10,412 8,185 6,603 7,707 522,633

Risks associated with the scheme
Final salary risk (linked to inflation risk)

The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what we assumed. Since the benefit is calculated on
the final salary (which will closely reflect inflation and other macroeconomic factors), the benefit amount increases as salary
increases.

Demagraphic risks
Mortality risk

The risk that the actual mortality experience is different than the assumed mortality. This effect is more pronounced in schemes
where the age and service distribution is on the higher side.

Withdrawal risk

The risk of actual withdrawals experience is different from assumed withdrawal probability. The significance of the withdrawal risk
varies with the age, service and the entitled benefits of the beneficiary.

2023 2022
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Creditors 64,762 48,422
Accrued liabilities and other payables 74,769 89,319
Contract liabilities - unsecured 68,095 34,471
Income tax deducted at source 749 619
Sales tax payable 36,129 34,337
Workers' profit participation fund (Note 10.1) - 5,731
Waorkers' welfare fund (Note 10.2) 7,569 7,569

252,073 220,468
Workers' profit particdpation fund
Balance as on 01 July 5,731 12,866
Add:
Interest for the year (Note 29) 813 771
Provision for the year - 5,731

6,544 19,368

Less: Payments made during the year 6,544 13,637
Balance as on 30 June - 5,731
Workers' welfare fund
Balance as on 01 July 7,569 5,428
Provision for the year - 2,141
Balance as on 30 June 7,569 7,569
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11.

11.1

12.

2023 2022
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

From banking companies - secured

al
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Running and cash finances (Note 11.1) 126,306 372,755

Others - unsecured

Other related parties (Note 11.2) 459,616 208,378
585,922 581,133

These finances are obtained from banking companies under mark-up arrangements and are secured against hypothecation of stocks
and further secured against the pledge of cotton, tencel and varn. These farm part of total credit facility of Rupees 860 million
(2022: Rupees 923 million). The rates of mark-up range from 13.70% to 23.73% (2022: 8.95% to 16.17%) per annum on the
balance outstanding.

These represent interest free loans obtained from directors of the Company to meet the Company's working capital requirements.
These are repayable on demand.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

a) Contingencies

i) An appeal has been filed by the Company before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue, Lahore dated 07 June 2017 against the
dermand of Rupees 22.378 million (2022: Rupees 22.378 million) by the tax department regarding disallowance of minimum tax
adjustment for the tax year 2011. The Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue disposed the appeal. Then the department filed a
reference before the Lahore High Court, Lahore against this order on 04 December 2019. The related provision is not made in
these financial statements in view of favorable outcome of the appeal.

i) An appeal has been filed by the Company before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue, Lahore dated 16 April 2019, against the
order of Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) dated 14 November 2018, for demand of Rupees 14.663 million
(2022: Rupees 14.663 million) by the tax department regarding disallowance of withhalding taxes as adopted in income tax return
for the tax year 2016. The related provision is not made in these financial statements in view of favorable cutcome of the appeal.

iii) The Company filed appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue, Lahore as on 21 March 2019 against the order of
Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue for demand of Rupees 114.118 million (2022: Rupees 114.118 million) by the tax
department by nullifying the proration of the income between FTR and NTR as adopted by the Company for the tax year 2014. The
related provision is not made in these financial statements in view of favorable outcome of the appeal.

iv) An appeal has been filed by the Regional Tax Office (RTO) Faisalabad before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue, Lahore in
March 2019 because Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue amended the assessment for the tax year 2007 and created a
demand of Rupees 5.766 million (2022: Rupees 5.766 million) on the issue of proration of expenses and prorated the spedfic
expenses related to normal tax regime to final tax regime. The related provision is nat made in these financial statements in view of
favarable outcome of the appeal.

v) An appeal has been filed by the Company before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue, Lahore on 30 July 2021 against the order
of Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) for demand of Rupees 8.966 million (2022: Rupees 8.966 million). The
original order was issued by the Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue for non-deduction of withholding tax on certain parties
under various clauses of section 153 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The related provision is not made in these financial
statements in view of favorable cutcome of the appeal.

vi) On 13 August 2020, the Supreme Court of Pakistan upheld the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) Act, 2015 to be
constitutional and intra vires. In connection with this dedision, the Company filed a writ petition in Lahore High Court, Lahore on 16
September 2020 against the charge of GIDC at the rate of captive power consumer instead of industrial consumer. Lahore High
Court, Lahare suspended the payment of Rupees 26.344 million (2022: Rupees 26.344 million) related to this difference, subject to
furnishing of post dated cheques which have been submitted by the Company. Keeping in view the opinion of the legal counsel of
the Company, the related provision is not made in these financial statements as there are strong grounds of favourable outcome of
the petition.

vii) An appeal was filed in Lahore High Court, Lahore an 10 August 2017 against cost of supply of Re-Gasified Liquefied Natural
Gas (RLNG) by Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited (SNGPL) amounting to Rupees 12.224 million (2022: Rupees 12.224 million).
This appeal was allowed by Lahore High Court, Lahore on 13 December 2019 by asking Oil and Gas Regulatory Authority (OGRA)
to conduct a public hearing to determine the level of cost of supply of RLNG. Keeping in view the opinion of the legal counsel of the
Company, the related provision is not made in these financial statements as there are strong grounds that the decision of the
proposed public hearing of OGRA will be decided in favour of the Company.

viil) Sindh High Court, Karachi made decision on 04 June 2021 about the levy of Sindh Infrastructure Cess, against which the
Company was contingently liable for Rupees 3 million (2022: Rupees 3 million) although guarantees were submitted by the
Company's Bank for the same amount. Against the decision, the Company lodged a constitution petition no. 4719/2021 dated 13
August 2021 in Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP). Thereafter, on 01 September 2021, SCP allowed the petition, suspended the
judgement of Sindh High Court, Karachi and leave to appeal was granted. However the case is not yet fixed for hearing by SCP. On
advice of legal counsel, in view of possible favourable outcome, no provision is accounted for in these financial statements.

ix) Guarantees of Rupees 48.237 million (2022: Rupees 48.237 million) are given by the banks of the Company to SNGPL against
gas connections and Faisalabad Electric Supply Company Limited (FESCO) against electricity connection.

b) Commitments
i) Letters of credit for capital expenditure are of Rupees Nil as at 30 June 2023 (2022: Rupees Nil).
ii) Letters of credit for other than capital expenditure are of Rupees Nil as at 30 June 2023 (2022: Rupees 429.314 miliion).
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2023 2022
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
14, RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET
Opening book value 2,975 -
Add: Addition during the year - 3,368
2,975 3,368
Less: Depreciation charged during the year (Note 26) 595 393
Balance as on 30 June 2,380 2,975
14.1 The Company obtained vehide on lease term of five years.
15. LONG TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Security deposits 3,726 3,726
Prepayments 414 460
4,140 4,186
Less: Current portion shown under current assets (Note 20) 339 312
3,801 3,874
16. STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE TOOLS
Stores (Note 16.1) 20,424 22,003
Spare parts 76,920 61,461
Loose tools 218 204
97,562 83,668

16.1 These incdude stores in transit of Rupees Nil (2022: Rupees 2.070 million).

17. STOCK IN TRADE

Raw materials (Note 17.1) 199,819 428,205
Work-in-process 33,537 21,076
Finished goods 70,991 108,336
Waste 9,132 22,892

313,479 580,509

17.1 Raw materials include stock in transit of Rupees Nil (2022: Rupees 150.946 million).

17.2 Stock in trade of Rupees 50.417 million (2022: Rupees 22.892 million) is being carried at net
realizable value

17.3 The aggregate amount of write-down of inventories to net realizable value recognized as an
expense during the year was Rupees 8.153 million (2022: Rupees Nil)

18, TRADE DEBTS

Considered good:

Unsecured (Note 18.1) 95,323 28,105
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (Note 18.2) 552 415
94,771 27,690
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18.1

As at 30 June 2023, trade debts of Rupees 46.592 million (2022: Rupees 27.593 million) were
past due but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers from whom there

is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade debts is as follows;

Upto 1 month
1 to 6 months
More than 6 months

18.2

Balance as on 01 July

Add: Recognized during the year (Note 27)

Balance as on 30 June

18.3
due within 30 to 90 days from delivery.

19. LOANS AND ADVANCES

Considered good:
Employees - interest free:

Against salary (Note 19.1)
Against expenses:

Executive
Other employees

Advances to suppliers / service providers

Letters of credit

19.1

Allowance for expected credit losses

al
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2023 2022
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
43,066 26,726
3,508 754
18 113
46,592 27,593
415 -
137 415
552 415

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the time of delivery, while payment is generally

199 912
200 200
245 235
445 435
644 1,347
1,287 1,044
- 1,724
1,931 ~ 4,115

These represent short term loans and advances given to employees as per Company's policy for
general purposes. These are secured against balance to the credit of employees in the staff

retirement gratuity and are recoverable in equal monthly installments.

20. SHORT TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Deposits

Current portion of long term deposits and prepayments (Note 15)

56

7,700 7,700
339 312
8,039 8,012
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21. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Considered good:

Sales tax and special excise duty refundable
Miscellaneous

22. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

With banks:
In current accounts

Cash in hand
23. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

Sales of yarn
Waste

Less: Sales tax

2023

al

2022

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

55,547 60,024
1,784 2,606
57,331 62,630
28,798 25,093
861 782
29,659 25,875
1,811,195 3,083,526
169,419 219,269
1,980,614 3,302,795
303,935 495,980
1,676,679 2,806,815

23.1 The amount of Rupees 27.050 million included in contract liabilities as at 30 June 2022 has been

recognized as revenue in 2023 (2022: Rupees 203.654 million)

23.2 Revenue is recognized at point in time as per the terms and conditions of underlying contracts with

customers. Moreover all sales were made within Pakistan.
24, COST OF SALES

Raw materials consumed (Note 24.1)
Loading, unloading and weighment charges
Salaries, wages and other benefits

Staff retirement benefit

Stores, spare parts and loose tools consumed
Packing materials consumed

Repair and maintenance

Fuel and power

Insurance

Other factory overheads

Depredation on property, plant and equipment (Note 13.2)

Work-in-process
Opening stock
Closing stock

Cost of goods manufactured
Finished goods

Opening stock
Closing stock

1,086,263 1,828,905
175 556
110,168 169,214
19,513 16,899
38,028 88,112
15,531 30,280
717 1,066
401,960 512,528
3,206 2,451
1,174 1,754
45,617 45,468
1,722,352 2,697,233
21,076 32,053
(33,537) (21,076)
(12,461) 10,977
1,709,891 2,708,210
131,228 38,130
(80,123) (131,228)
51,105 (93,098)
1,760,396 2,615,112

|
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2023 2022
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
24.1 Raw materials consumed

25.

26.

26.1

27.

Opening stock
Add: Purchased during the year

Less: Closing stodk

DISTRIBUTION COST

Salaries and other benefits
Staff retirement benefit
Outward freight and handling
Commission to selling agents

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and other benefits
Staff retirement benefit
Rent, rates and taxes
Insurance

Travelling and conveyance
Vehicles’ running
Entertainment

Auditor's remuneration (Note 26.1)
Advertisement

Postage and telephone
Utilities

Printing and stationery
Repair and maintenance
Fee and subscription

Legal and professional
Miscellaneous

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (Note 13.2)

Depreciation on right-of-use asset (Note 14)

Auditor's remuneration

Audit fee
Half yearly review
Other certification

OTHER EXPENSES

Allowance for expected credit losses (Note 18.2)
Loans and advances written off

Workers' profit participation fund

Workers' welfare fund

OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets
Profit on investment

Income from non-financial assets

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment
Gain on sale of store, spare parts and loose tools
Credit balances written back

58
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428,205 466,513
857,877 1,790,597
1,286,082 2,257,110
199,819 428,205
1,086,263 1,828,905
990 945

71 57

33 781

195 1,366
1,289 3,149
23,727 23,343
1,626 1,412
356 410
1,861 2,051
3,197 2,914
8,136 7,189
1,196 1,637
975 950
137 192
1,275 1,236
3,054 3,682
411 310
883 1,213
1,193 1,632
648 546
1,297 1,288
3,322 4,116
595 393
53,889 54,514
800 800
125 100

50 50

975 950
137 415

91 98

- 5,731

- 2,141

228 8,385

- 138

3,656 10,694
128 -

129 -
3,913 10,694
3,913 10,832
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30.

30.1

31.

al
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2023 2022
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
FINANCE COST

Mark-up on:

Short term borrowings 93,456 28,179
Lease liability (Note 8.1) 299 119

Bank charges and commission 1,386 1,449
Interest on workers' profit participation fund (Note 10.1) 813 771

95,954 30,518

TAXATION

Current (Note 30.1) 20,958 35,085
Deferred (56,987) (25,614)

(36,029) 9,472

Provision for current taxation represents minimum tax under section 113 of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001. The Company has unused tax losses of Rupees 381.418 million (2022: Rupees
197.910 million) representing unabsorbed deprediation of Rupees 200.880 million (2022: Rupees
197.910 million) and tax losses of Rupees 180.538 million (2022: Rupees Nil). The tax losses apart
from unabsorbed depreciation will expire in 2029. Reconciliation of tax expense and product of
accounting profit multiplied by the applicable tax rate is not presented in view of unused tax losses
of the Company. Alternative corporate tax for the year ended 30 June 2021 amounting to Rupees
28.475 million is available for carry forward upto ten years under section 113C of the Ordinance.
Total minimum tax available for carry forward under section 113 of the Ordinance as at 30 June
2023 is of Rupees 77.673 million. The Company has not recognised deferred income tax asset in
respect of minimum tax available for carry forward and alternative corporate tax as sufficient
taxable profits would not be available to utilise these in the forceable future. The minimum tax
would expire as follows:

Accounting year to which the Amount of Accounting year in which
minimum tax relates minimum tax minimum tax will expire

RUPEES IN
THOUSAND

2023 20,958 2026
2022 19,851 2025
2020 16,498 2025
2019 20,366 2024

77,673

(LOSS) / EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

There is no dilutive effect on the basic (loss) / earnings per share which is based on:

2023 2022
(Loss) { profit for the year (Rupees in thousand) (195,735) 96,498
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (Numbers) 9 660 000 9 660 000
(Loss) f earnings per share (Rupees) (20.26) 9.99
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2023 2022
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
32. CASH GENERATED FROM / (USED IN) OPERATIONS

(Loss) / profit before taxation (231,764) 105,969

Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items:

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 48,939 49,584
Depreciation on right-of-use asset 595 393
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (3,656) (10,694)
Provision for staff retirement gratuity 21,210 18,368
Profit on investment - (138)
Finance cost 95,954 30,518
Allowance for expected credit losses 137 415
Loans and advances written off 91 28
Credit balances written back (129) -
Working capital changes (Note 32.1) 225,017 (208,965)
156,394 (14,452)

32.1 Working capital changes

(Increase) / decrease in current assets:

Stores, spare parts and loose tools (13,894) (11,229)
Stock in trade 267,030 (43,813)
Trade debts (67,218) 60,771
Loans and advances 2,093 395
Short term deposits and prepayments 27) 101
Other receivables 5,299 6,101
193,283 12,326
Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables 31,734 (221,291)

225,017 (208,965)

32.2 Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities:

2023 2022
Short term | Lease |Unclaimed Short term| Lease | Undaimed
borrowings | liability | dividend Total ||borrowings| liability dividend Total
{RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

Balance as at 01 July 581,133 1,823 1,023 583,979 467,314 - 792 468,106
Borrowing obtained - net 4,789 - - 4,789 113,819 - - 113,819
Lease liability recognized - - - - - 3,283 - 3,283
Dividend dedared - - - - - - 6,762 6,762
Dividend paid - - - - - - (6,531) (6,531)
Repayment of lease liability - (240) - (240) - (1,460) - (1,460)
Balance as at 30 June 585,922 1,583 1,023 _ 588,528 581,133 1,823 1,023 583,979

33. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for remuneration including all benefits to the executives of the Company & as follows:

[ Executives |

[ 2023 [ 2022 |

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Managerial remuneration 3,200 3,200

Allowances

House rent 1,516 1,516
Utilities 84 84
4,800 4,800
Number of persons 2 2

33.1 Chief Executive Officer, some of the directors and executives of the Company are provided with free Company maintained vehicles and
entitled to reimbursement of travelling expenses, electricity, gas and water bills.

33.2 No remuneration was paid to any director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
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34. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties comprise other related parties and key management personnel. The Company in the narmal course of business
carries out transacions with various related parties. Detail of transactions with related parties, other than those which have been
specifically disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements is as follows:

Particulars Basis of relationship Nature of transaction 2023 2022
{RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

Other related parties

Directors Members of board of directors ~ Borrowings obtained - net 251,238 5,000

Dividend paid to directors  empers of board of directors ;i o0y g ; 5,558
and their spouses

34.1 Detail of compensation to key management personnel comprising of executives is disclosed in Note 33.

2023 2022
(NUMBER OF PERSONS)

35. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Number of employees as at 30 June 421 544
Average number of employees during the year 419 541

36. PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

2023 2022
(12(3532%’; pllagésczaiafi\st;r converted to 20s count based on 3 shifts per day for 1 095 shifts (Kgs.) 14 275 D00 14 275 000
Actual production converted to 20s count based on 3 shifts per day for 742 shifts
(2002: o0 Zhifts) per day (Kgs.) 4523952 9490011

36.1 REASONS FOR LOW PRODUCTION

The main reason for low production is adequately briefed in Note 1.2. Moreover, due to manufacturing of fine counts of yarn, the
machines were run on slow speed. Furthermore, normal repair and maintenance was also the factor for low production.

37.  ENTITY - WIDE INFORMATION

The Company constitues of a single repartable segment. All non-current assets of the Company at the reporting date are located
and operating in Pakistan. There were two (2022: one) major customers of the Company representing revenue of Rupees 430.718
million during the year (2022: Rupees 612.117 million).

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
38.1 Financial risk factors

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, other price risk and interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredidability of
financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Company's finance department under policies approved by the Board of Directars. The
Board provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas such as currency risk, other price
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, investment of excess liquidity and use of non-derivative financial instruments.

(a) Market risk
(i) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial transactions or receivables and payables that exist due to
transactions in foreign currencies. The Company has no receivable / payable balance in foreign currency as at 30 June 2023 (2022:
Nil).

(ii) Other price risk

Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors
specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.
The Company is not exposed to other price risk.
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(iii) Interest rate risk

This represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a finandcial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's interest rate risk arises
from lease liability and short term borrowings. Financial instruments at variable rates expose
the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. Financial instruments at fixed rate expose the
Company to fair value interest rate risk.

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company's interest bearing financial
instruments was as follows:

2023 2022
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

Floating rate instruments

Financial liabilities
Lease liability 1,583 1,823
Short term borrowings 126,306 372,755

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rate at the reporting date would not
affect profit or loss of the Company.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

If interest rates at the year end date, fluctuates by 1% higher / lower with all other variables
held constant, (loss) / profit after taxation for the year would have been Rupees 1.279 million
higher / lower (2022: Rupees 3.487 million lower / higher) mainly as a result of higher /
lower interest expense on floating rate borrowings. This analysis is prepared assuming the
amounts of financial instruments outstanding at reporting date were outstanding for the whole
year.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss
for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. The carrying amount of financial
assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date was as follows:

Loans and advances 199 912
Deposits 11,426 11,426
Trade debts 94,771 27,690
Other receivables 1,784 2,606
Bank balances 28,798 25,093

136,978 67,727
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The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed
by reference to external credit ratings (if available) or to historical information about
counterparty default rate.

Rating 2023 2022

Short Long
Term term Agency (RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

Banks

Bank Alfalah Limited Al+ AA+  PACRA 2,611 1,148
Habib Bank Limited A-1+ AAA VIS 14,444 3,041
National Bank of Pakistan Al+ AAA PACRA 2 2
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA 7,139 80
MCB Bank Limited Al+ AAA PACRA 88 89
Soneri Bank Limited Al+ AA - PACRA 6 6
Bank Al-Habib Limited Al+ AAA PACRA 4

Sindh Bank Limited A-1 A+ VIS 10 10
Faysal Bank Limited A-1+ AA VIS 79 79
Meezan Bank Limited A-1+ AAA VIS 3,781 20,000
AlBaraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited A-1 A+ VIS 634 634

28,798 25,093

The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade debts. Management uses actual
historical credit loss experience, credit risk characteristics and past days due, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment to determine
expected credit loss allowance.

To manage exposure of credit risk in respect of trade debts, management performs credit
reviews taking into account the customer’s financial position, past experience and other
factors. Majority of the Company's revenue is earned from customers where advance
payment is received. Sales contracts and credit terms are approved by the senior
management. The management has set a maximum credit period limit for each type of
customer in order to reduce the credit risk.

The Company's exposure to credit risk and allowance for expected credit losses related to
trade debts is disclosed in Note 18.

Due to the Company's long standing business relationships with these counterparties and
after giving due consideration to their strong financial standing, the management does not
expect non-performance by these counterparties on their obligations to the Company.
Accordingly, the credit risk is minimal.

|
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(c) Liquidity risk
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Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities.

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an adeguate
amount of committed credit facilities. At 30 June 2023, the Company had Rupees 733.694 million (2022: Rupees 550.245
million) available borrowing limits from financial institutions and Rupees 29.659 million (2022: Rupees 25.875 million)
cash and bank balances. The management believes the liguidity risk to be low. Following are the contractual maturities of
financial liabilities, including interest payments. The amounts disclosed in the table are undiscounted cash flows:

Carrying Contractual 6 months 6-12 1-2 More than
-2 years
amount  cash flows or less months 2 years
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Contractual maturities of finandal liabilities as at 30 June 2023:
Non-derivative financial liabilities:
Lease liability 1,583 2,346 378 328 656 984
Trade and other payables 139,531 139,531 139,531 - - -
Unclaimed dividend 1,023 1,023 1,023 - - -
Accrued mark-up 16,365 16,365 16,365 - - -
Short term borrowings 585,922 593,368 593,368 - - -
744,424 752,633 750,665 328 656 984
Contractual maturities of finandial liabilities as at 30 June 2022:
Non-derivative financial liabilities:
Lease liability 1,823 2,611 290 290 580 1,451
Trade and other payables 137,741 137,741 137,741 - - -
Unclaimed dividend 1,023 1,023 1,023 - - -
Accrued mark-up 5,443 5,443 5,443 - - -
Short term borrowings 581,133 597,813 597,813 - - -
727,163 744,631 742,310 290 580 1,451

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the basis of interest rates /
mark-up rates effective as at 30 June. The rates of interest / mark up have been disclosed in Note 8 and Note 11 to

these financial statements.

38.2 Financial instruments by categories

Financial assets as per statement of financial position

Loans and advances
Deposits

Trade debts

QOther receivables

Cash and bank balances

Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position

Lease liability

Accrued mark-up
Unclaimed dividend
Short term borrowings
Trade and other payables
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At amortized cost |

2023 2022
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

199 912
11,426 11,426
94,771 27,690

1,784 2,606
29,659 25,875
137,839 68,509
1,583 1,823
16,365 5,443
1,023 1,023
585,922 581,133
139,531 137,741
744,424 727,163
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38.3 Reconciliation of financial assets and financial liabilities to the line items presented in the statement of

finandal position is as follows:

384

385

2023 2022
Assets as Assets as
. Other than per . : Other than per
Fi::s:ctfl financial statement F'::S':::I finandal | statement
assets of financial assets of finandal
position position
----------------------------- (RUPEES IN THOUSAND) ===-=-==ss=ssasmasacmamannaan
Long term deposits and prepayments 3,726 75 3,801 3,726 148 3,874
Loans and advances 199 1,732 1,931 912 3,203 4,115
Short term deposits and prepayment: 7,700 339 8,039 7,700 312 8,012
Trade debts 94,771 - 94,771 27,690 - 27,690
Other receivables 1,784 55,547 57,331 2,606 60,024 62,630
Cash and bank balances 29,659 - 29,659 25,875 - 25,875
137,839 57,693 195,532 68,509 63,687 132,196
2023 2022
Liabilities Liabilities
. : Other than as per . - Other than as per
I'::E:;:S:; financial statement I'i:lanbai:.il:::; finandal | statement
liabilities | of financial liabilities | of finandal
position position
----------------------------- (RUPEES IN THOUSAND) =======ssssescmanmmammannnna=
Lease liability 1,583 - 1,583 1,823 - 1,823
Trade and other payables 139,531 112,542 252,073 137,741 82,727 220,468
Undlaimed dividend 1,023 - 1,023 1,023 - 1,023
Accrued mark-up 16,365 - 16,365 5,443 - 5,443
Short term borrowings 585,922 - 585,922 581,133 - 581,133
744,4_24 112,542 856,966 727,163 82,727 809,890

Offsetting finandal assets and finandal liabilities

As on reporting date, recognized financial instruments are not subject to offsetting as there are no enforceable master
netting arrangements and similar agreements.

Capital risk management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Campany's ability to continue as a going concern in
order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of
dividends to be paid to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. Consistent with others in the industry
and the requirements of the lenders, the Company monitors the capital structure on the basis of gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as borrowings divided by total capital employed. Borrowings represent lease liabilidy and short term borrowings
obtained by the Company as referred to Note 8 and Mote 11 respectively. Total capital employed indudes 'total equity' as
shown in the statement of finandal position plus 'borrowings'. The Company's strategy remained unchanged from last year.

2023 2022
Borrowings Rupees in thousand 587,505 582,956
Total equity Rupees in thousand 924,310 934,487
Total capital employed Rupees in thousand 1,511,815 1,517,443
Gearing ratio Percentage 38.86 38.42

The increase in gearing ratio resulted due to loss after taxation of the Company.

|
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RECOGNIZED FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Fair value hierarchy

Certain financial assets and financial liabilities are not measured at fair value if the carrying amounts are
a reasonable approximation of fair value. Due to the short-term nature, carrying amounts of certain
financial assets and financial liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair value. For the majority
of the non-current receivables, the fair values are also not significantly different to their carrying
amounts. Judgments and estimates are made in determining the fair values of the finandial instruments
that are recognized and measured at fair value in these finandal statements. To provide an indication
about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has dassified its finandal
instruments into following three levels. However as at the reporting date, the Company has no such
type of finandal instruments which are required to be grouped into these levels. These levels are
explained as under:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of
observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market base (i.e.
unobservable inputs).

RECOGNIZED FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS - NON FINANCIAL ASSETS

Fair value hierarchy

The judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the non-financial assets that are
recognized and measured at fair value in the finandal statements. To provide an indication about the

reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its non-finandal
assets into the following three levels:

[Level1| Level2 | Level3 | Total |

--------------- RUPEES IN THOUSAND--=-====m==sau=.
At 30 June 2023
Freehold land - 207,818 - 207,818
Buildings on freehold land - 254,986 - 254,986
Plant and machinery - 691,020 - 691,020
Electric installations / appliances - 35,000 - 35,000
Generators - 49,000 - 49,000
Laboratory equipment - 8,999 - 8,999
Total non-financial assets - 1,246,823 - 1,246,823
At 30 June 2022
Freehold land - 140,022 - 140,022
Buildings on freehold land - 223,489 - 223,489
Plant and machinery - 602,444 - 602,444
Electric installations / appliances - 27,487 - 27,487
Generators - 40,613 - 40,613
Laboratory equipment - 7,670 - 7,670
Total non-financial assets - 1,041,725 - 1,041,725

The Company’s policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at
the end of the reporting period.

There was no transfer between level 1 and 2 for recurring fair value measurements during the year.
Further, there was no transfer in and out of level 3 measurements.

|
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(if) Valuation techniques used to determine level 2 fair values

The Company obtains independent valuation for its freehold land, buildings thereon, plant and
machinery, electric installations / appliances, generators and laboratory equipment (classified as
property, plant and equipment). The management updates the assessment of the fair value of each
property taking into account the most recent independent valuations. The management determines
property's value within a range of reasonable fair value estimates. The best evidence of fair value of
freehold land is current prices in an active market for similar lands. The best evidence of fair value of
buildings is to calculate fair depreciated market value by applying an appropriate annual rate of
depreciation on the new construction / replacement value of the same buildings. The best evidence of
fair value of plant and machinery, electric installations / appliances, generators and laboratory
equipment is to calculate fair depreciated market value by applying an appropriate annual rate of
depreciation on the value of new plant and machinery, eleciric installations / appliances, generators
and laboratory equipment of the same specifications.

The Company engages external, independent and qualified valuers to determine the fair value of the
Company’s freehold land, buildings thereon, plant and machinery, electric installations / appliances,
generators and laboratory equipment. The fair value of the freehold land, buildings thereon, plant and
machinery, electric installations / appliances, generators and laboratory equipment has been
determined by Messrs Zafar Igbal and Company as at 30 June 2023.

Changes in fair values are analyzed at each reporting date during discussion between the management
of the Company and the valuer. As part of this discussion the team presents a report that explains the
reason for the fair value movements.

41. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorized for issue on October 05, 2023 by the Board of Directors of
the Company.

42. CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Comparative figures have been re-arranged, wherever necessary, for the purpose of comparison.
However, no significant re-arrangements have been made.

43. GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of Rupees unless otherwise stated.

/ b’ & /
AIZAD AMER KHAWJA«‘AMER KHURSHID Muhamad Saqib Ehsan
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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1.1 Name of the Company | AN TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

FORM 34
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
(Section 227(2)(f))
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
|
| 30-06-2023 |

2.1. Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at

---—-Shareholdings--—---

2.2 No. of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held
568 1 100 17,164
244 101 500 57,761

37 501 1,000 32,907
70 1,001 5,000 183,772
15 5,001 10,000 122,461
7 10,001 15,000 90,348
4 15,001 20,000 68,109
3 20,001 25,000 71,520
1 25,001 30,000 29,500
1 35,001 40,000 36,000
3 40,001 45,000 126,587
1 75,001 80,000 78,225
2 85,001 90,000 178,500
1 95,001 100,000 100,000
1 135,001 140,000 136,500
1 260,001 265,000 264,125
1 430,001 435,000 431,446

1 740,001 745,000 742,697
1 885,001 890,000 890,000
1 1,180,001 1,185,000 1,184,193
1 1,475,001 1,480,000 1,475,611
1 1,640,001 1,645,000 1,640,170
1 1,700,001 1,705,000 1,702,404
966 9,660,000
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2.3 Categories of Shareholders

2.3.1 Directors, Chief Executive Officer,
and their spouse and minor children

2.3.2 Associated Companies,
undertakings and related
parties. (Parent Company)

2.3.3 NIT and ICP

2.3.4 Banks Dewelopment
Financial Institutions, Non
Banking Financial Institutions.

2.3.5 Insurance Companies

2.3.6 Modarabas and Mutual
Funds

2.3.7 Shareholders holding 10%
or more

2.3.8 General Public
a. Local
b. Foreign

2.3.9 Others (to be specified)
1- Joint Stock Companies

2- Investment Companies

3- Pension Funds

4- Others

69

Shares Held

7,965,531

448,846

559

6,600

7,071,075

1,141,195
0

43,733

200
40,587
12,749

Percentage

82.4589

0.0000

4.6464

0.0058

0.0000

0.0683

73.1995

11.8136
0.0000

0.4527
0.0021
0.4202
0.1320
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Categories of Shareholding required under Code of Corporate Governance (CCG)
As on June 30, 2023

. No. of Shares
Sr. No. Name Held Percentage

Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties (Name Wise Detail): - 0.0000

Mutual Funds (Name Wise Detail)
1 CDC - TRUSTEE GOLDEN ARROW SELECTED STOCK FUND (CDC) 6,500 0.0673

Directors and their Spouse and Minor Children (Name Wise Detail):

1 MR, ATZAD AMER 1,740,170 18.0142
2 MRS. NAZIMA AMER 1,926,890 19.9471
3 MR. ANNS AMER 1,475,611 152755
4 KHAWAJA AMER KIHHURSHID 1,928,404 19.9628
5 MISS YUSRA AMER 890,000 92133
6 MR. ABDUL RAUF 3456 0.0358
7 SYED KHALID ALI 1,000 0.0104
Executives: - -

Public Sector Companies & Corporations: - -

Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non Banking Finance 41,246 0.4270
Companies, Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds:

Shareholders holding five percent or more voting intrest in the listed company (Name Wise Detail)

S. No. Name Holding % AGE
1 MRS. NAZIMA AMER 1,926,890 19.9471
2 KHAWAJA AMER KHURSHID 1,928,404 199628
3 MR. AIZAD AMFR 1,740,170 18.0142
4 MR. ANNS AMTR 1475611 152755
5 MISS YUSRA AMER 890,000 9.2133

All trades in the shares of the listed company, carried out by its Directors, Executives and their
spouses and minor children shall also be disclosed:

S. No. Name Sale Purchase
1 KHAWAJTA AMER KHURSHID (CDC) - 26,000
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FORM OF PROXY

IWe of
being member(s) of
AN TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED holding ordinary shares as per Registered Folio
No./CDC Alc No. (for members who have shares in CDS)
hereby appoint Mr./Mrs./Miss of (full
address) or failing him/her
Mr./Mrs./Miss of (full
address) (being

member of the Company) as my/our Proxy to attend, act and vote for me/us and on my/our
behalf at the 42™ Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on October 27, 2023
at 11:00 a.m. at its Registered Office 35 K.M. Sheikhupura Road, Faisalabad and/or any
adjournment thereof.

As witness my/our hand seal this day of 2023
Signed by in the
presence of

Signaturcs on
Rs.5/-
Revenue Stamps

(Signature must agree with the specimen
signatures registered with the Company)
Notes:

1. This proxy form duly completed and signed, must be received at the Office of the Share
Registrar M/S Corplink (Pvt.) Limited, Wings Arcade, 01-K Commercial, Model Town,
Lahore not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting.

2. No person shall act as proxy unless hef/she himself/fherself is a member of the
Company, except that a Corporation may appoint a person who is not a member.

3. If a member appoints more than one proxy and more than one instruments of proxy are
deposited by a member with the Company, all such instruments of proxy shall be
rendered invalid.

4. Any individual Beneficial Owner of the Central Depository Company, entitled to vote at
this meeting must bring his / her National Identity Card with him/her to prove his/her
identity, and in case of proxy, must enclose an attested copy of his / her National
Identity Card. Representatives of Corporate members should bring the usual
documents required for such purpose.
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